I.

IDENTITY OF PETITIONER 

Petitioner, Amos Gyau, through his attorney, Suzanne Lee Elliott, 

seeks review. 

II. 
COURT OF APPEALS DECISION 

The Court of Appeals issued an unpublished decision affirming 

Gyau's conviction and sentence on July 20, 2015. App. A. 

III. 
ISSUE PRESENTED FOR REVIEW 

Was Gyau denied his right to a fair trial when the trial court did not 

provide him with an interpreter? 

IV. 
STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

Amos Gyau was charged with one count of second degree rape. 

He was 17 on September 21, 2011, when the alleged rape took place. 

Thus, he was initially charged in Snohomish County Juvenile Court. The 

juvenile court declined jurisdiction. Gyau was convicted after a bench 

trial in the Superior Court. That judgment and sentence were affirmed on 

appeal in State v. Gyau, No. 71013-3-I. Gyau has filed a Petition for 

Review in that matter. 
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This case concerns the denial ofGyau's motion for new trial 

pursuant to CrR 7.5. Gyau alleged that his conviction should be reversed 

because 1) he was not provided with an interpreter during the proceedings, 

2) he did not knowingly waive his right to a jury trial, and 3) trial counsel 

failed to call a key witness. CP 64-83. 

Defense counsel presented her own affidavit. She stated that she 

traveled to Airway Heights Correctional Center to meet with Gyau. At 

their in-person meeting "it became immediately clear that there were some 

significant language and cultural barriers that effected communication 

between counsel and Mr. Gyau." She pointed out that Gyau had only 

arrived in the United States from Ghana in 2008. His first language was 

Twi. She also stated that Gyau spoke Twi at home. She observed that 

although Gyau "speaks English very well conversationally, he likely 

struggled to understand the legal proceedings." CP 66. 

The State also admitted that no interpreter had been provided, but 

argued that the Gyau did not need an interpreter. The State also argued 

that Gyau knowingly and voluntarily waived his right to a jury trial and 

that his trial counsel was not deficient. 

The trial court heard argument on the motion and took testimony 

from Aiko Barkdoll, Gyau' s Snohomish County Juvenile Court probation 

officer. 5/8/14 RP 6. Barkdoll testified that she worked with Gyau for 
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two years. She stated that she had no trouble communicating with Gyau, 

!d. at 8. But she never asked Gyau if he needed an interpreter and he 

never told her that he could not understand her. !d. at 8-9. Barkdoll did 

state that Gyau and his family had a difficult time understanding the 

process of posting baiL/d. at 12-13. She said: "It also needed to be 

mapped out, kind of a cause and effect" !d. at 13, She also stated that she 

never had any discussion with Gyau that required her to convey legal 

concepts. !d. 

The trial court entered findings of fact and conclusions of law on 

the issues raised in Gyau's motion and denied relief. CP 56-63. 

v. 
ARGUMENT 

A. GYAU WAS DENIED HIS RIGHT TO A FAIR TRIAL WHEN 
HE WAS NOT PROVIDED WITH AN INTERPRETER 
DURING CRIMINAL PROCEEDINGS 

In this State, the right of a defendant in a criminal case to have an 

interpreter is based upon the Sixth Amendment constitutional right to 

confront witnesses and "the right inherent in a fair trial to be present at 

one's own trial." State v. Woo Won Choi, 55 Wn. App. 895,901,781 P.2d 

505 (1989), review denied, 114 Wn.2d 1002, 788 P.2d 1077 (1990). It is 

also the declared policy of this state under RCW 2.43.010: 

to secure the rights, constitutional or otherwise, of persons 
who, because of a non-English speaking cultural 
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background, are unable to readily understand or 
communicate in the English language, and who 
consequently cannot be fully protected in legal proceedings 
unless qualified interpreters are available to assist them. 

The federal cases hold that the right to an interpreter affects a 

defendant's Sixth Amendment right of confrontation and the right inherent 

in a fair trial to be present at one's own trial. See United States ex rel. 

Negron v. State of New York, 434 F.2d 386, 389 (2nd Cir. 1970). The right 

rests fundamentally on the notion that "no defendant should face the 

Kafkaesque specter of an incomprehensible ritual which may terminate ip 

punishment." United States v. Carrion, 488 F.2d 12, 14 (1st Cir. 1973), 

cert. denied, 416 U.S. 907, 94 S.Ct. 1613, 40 L.Ed.2d 112 (1974). The 

federal courts have held that whenever put on notice that there may be 

some significant language difficulty, the trial court should exercise its 

discretion to determine whether an interpreter is needed. Carrion, 488 

F.2d at 14-15; accord State v. Korich, 130 Wash. 243,246, 226 P. 1016 

(1924), appeal dismissed, 271 U.S. 690,46 S.Ct. 472,70 L.Ed. 1153 

(1926); State v. Trevino, 10 Wn. App. 89, 94-95, 516 P.2d 779 (1973), 

review denied, 83 Wn.2d 1009 (1974) (both state cases pertaining to 

interpreters to assist witnesses). The court "should make unmistakably 

clear" to a defendant that he has a right to a court-appointed interpreter at 
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trial ifthe court determines that one is needed. Carrion, 488 F.2d at 15; 

Negron, 434 F.2d at 390-91. 

The Court of Appeals relies upon the superficial reasoning, 

because Gyau had prior involvement with the juvenile justice system and 

appeared at hearings, he understood English. Moreover, the perception of 

others that he understood the intricate language of the justice system is not 

persuasive. The entire record leaves considerable question about whether 

Gyau really understood his rights and what he was waiving or not 

waiving. He was offered a plea that would have allowed him to remain in 

the juvenile justice system. 1/14/10 RP 3. Yet, he turned it down and 

instead risked an adult conviction that could result in a life sentence and 

will almost certainly result in his deportation if he is ever released. Once 

in the adult system, he waived the only advantage that system provides- a 

jury trial. It is inconceivable that someone with a "solid" understanding of 

English could make these ill-informed decisions. 

RCW 2.43.010 states: 

It is hereby declared to be the policy of this state to secure the 
rights, constitutional or otherwise, of persons who, because 
of a non-English-speaking cultural background, are unable to 
readily understand or communicate in the English language, 
and who consequently cannot be fully protected in legal 
proceedings unless qualified interpreters are available to 
assist them. It is the intent of the legislature in the passage of 
this chapter to provide for the use and procedure for the 
appointment of such interpreters 
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And citing to United States v. Carrion, supra, the Court of appeals 

states that "it is well established that the trial court has no obligation to 

appoint an interpreter unless up on notice of the defendant's language 

difficulties." While that may have been well established in the First 

Circuit in 1973, it is not the law of this State. 

RCW 2.43.060(1) states: 

(1) The right to a qualified interpreter may not be waived 
except when: 

(a) A non-English-speaking person requests a waiver; and 

(b) The appointing authority determines on the record that the 
waiver has been made knowingly, voluntarily, and 
intelligently. 

(2) Waiver of a qualified interpreter may be set aside and an 
interpreter appointed, in the discretion of the appointing 
authority, at any time during the proceedings. 

Thus, our legislature has put in place strong statutory protections 

for persons who are not proficient in English. Any waiver must be made 

on the record. The trial court is not entitled to presume that the defendant 

understands the proceedings simply because he can speak some English. 

The Court of Appeals' conclusion to the contrary is error. 

VI. 
CONCLUSION 

For these reasons, the Court should accept review and reverse the 

Court of Appeals.