I. IDENTITY OF RESPONDENT 

The State of Washington, respondent, asks that review be 

denied. 

II. STATEMENT OF THE CASE 

The defendant, petitioner, Amos Gyau, was found guilty at a 

bench trial of second degree rape. The facts of the crime are set 

out in the Court of Appeals opinion in the companion case (71013-

3-1). 

The defendant was originally charged with this crime in 

juvenile court in September, 2011. Following a hearing, the juvenile 

court declined jurisdiction in February, 2012. 1 CP 25-26. Lengthy 

proceedings in adult court culminated in a bench trial in August, 

2013. All of these proceedings were conducted in English. At trial, 

the defendant testified in English, with no apparent difficulties. 4 

Trial RP 586-638; 5 Trial RP 646-764. 

On August 21, the court orally announced its decision that 

the defendant was guilty. 1 CP 23. Sentencing was set for October 

9. On that day, defense counsel told the court that "the defense has 

filed a motion for a new trial." 6 Trial RP 886-86. The record does 

not, however, include any motion filed at that time. The court 
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proceeded with sentencing. A motion for new trial was finally filed 

on April 18, 2014. 3 CP 64-83. 

In this motion. the defendant claimed for the first time that he 

should have been provided with an interpreter. 3 CP 67-68. The 

sole factual support for this claim was the affidavit of the 

defendant's new attorney. who had been appointed after 

sentencing. She claimed that "there were some significant 

language and cultural barriers that effected [sic] communication 

between counsel and Mr. Gyau." She also recounted claims by the 

defendant's family members that 'while Amos speaks English very 

well conversationally, he likely struggled to understand the legal 

proceedings." 3 CP 65-66. 

At the hearing on the new trial motion. a probation counselor 

testified about the defendant's familiarity with English. 5/8 RP 8-12. 

The court held that the motion was untimely. Alternatively, the court 

denied the motion on its merits. 2 CP 62-63. The court found that 

the defendant had a "solid understanding of the English language" 

and "did not need an interpreter." 2 CP 59-60. 

These proceedings resulted in two separate appeals. Under 

cause no. 71013-3-1, the Court of Appeals affirmed the judgment 

and sentence. A petition for review of that decision is pending in 
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this court under cause no. 92096-6. Under cause no. 72011-2-1, the 

Court affirmed the order denying a new trial. The current petition 

seeks review of that decision. 

Ill. ARGUMENT 

UNDER THE TRIAL COURT'S FACTUAL FINDINGS, THE 
DEFENDNT DID NOT REQUIRE AN INTERPRETER UNDER 
EITHER CONSnTUTIONAL OR STATUTORY STANDARDS. 

The petitioner asks this court to review whether the absence 

of an interpreter denied him a fair trial. The legal standard does not 

appear to be in dispute. A defendant has a right to an interpreter if 

his language skills are Inadequate to understand the trial 

proceedings and present his defense. State v. Woo Won Choi, 55 

Wn. App. 895, 902, 781 P.2d 505 (1989), review denied, 114 

Wn.2d 1002 (1990); see United State v. Carrion, 488 F.2d 12, 14-

15 (1 51 Cir. 1973), cert. denied, 416 U.S. 907 (1973) (trial court 

should exercise discretion to appoint interpreter when defendant 

has "significant language difficulty"). This Is similar to the legislative 

policy declared in RCW 2.43.010: interpreters should be appointed 

for persons who are "unable to readily understand or communicate 

In the English language." In accordance with that policy, RCW 

2.43.020(4) defines a "non-English speaking person" as one who 

"cannot readily speak or understand the English language." 
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Here, the trial court entered the following findings of fact: 

21. This court had an opportunity to listen to the 
defendant testify and notes that he has a solid 
understanding of the English language and appeared 
able to communicate clearly and to understand the 
questions asked of him. The defendant does have an 
accent but this does not appear to present any 
communication problems. 

22. The defendant did not need an interpreter at trial 
or during any of the proceedings in this case, 
including when waiving his right to a jury trial. 

2 CP 59-60. 

The defendant did not assign error to finding no. 22. That 

finding is therefore treated as a verity on appeal. State v. Hill, 123 

Wn.2d 641, 644, 870 P.2d 313 (1994). He did assign error to the 

portion of finding no. 21 that says he has a "solid understanding of 

the English language." Appellant's Opening Brief at 1. His brief, 

however, contained no argument relating to that finding. The 

assignment of error Is therefore considered abandoned. State v. 

Motherwell, 114 Wn.2d 353, 358 n. 3, 788 P.2d 1066 (1990). In any 

event, the finding is supported by the court's observations of the 

defendant's testimony. Findings that are supported by substantial 

evidence are likewise treated as verities. Hill, 123 Wn.2d at 644. 

These findings dispose of the defendant's claims. Because 

he had a solid understanding of English, he did not need an 
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interpreter under the constitutional standard. For the same reason, 

he was not a "non-English speaking person" under the statutory 

definition. The lack of an interpreter neither denied the defendant a 

fair trial nor violated any statutory requirements. The facts of this 

case provide no reason for the court to review the application of 

those requirements. 

IV. CONCLUSION 

The petition for review should be denied.